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Beth E. Terrell, WSBA #26759 
Blythe H. Chandler, WSBA #43387 
Brittany J. Glass, WSBA #52095 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
TERRELL MARSHALL LAW GROUP PLLC 
936 North 34th Street, Suite 300 
Seattle, Washington 98103 
Telephone: (206) 816-6603 
Facsimile: (206) 319-5450 
Email: bterrell@terrellmarshall.com 
Email: bchandler@terrellmarshall.com 
Email: bglass@terrellmarshall.com 
 
David C. Silver, pro hac vice motion forthcoming 
Jason S. Miller, pro hac vice motion forthcoming 
Attorneys for Plaintiff  
SILVER MILLER 
11780 West Sample Road 
Coral Springs, Florida 33065 
Telephone: (954) 516-6000 
Email: DSilver@SilverMillerLaw.com 
Email: JMiller@SilverMillerLaw.com         

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON 

 
MARK MOSS, an individual; 
 

Plaintiff, 
 

v. 
GIGA WATT, INC., a Washington 
corporation; and GIGA WATT, PTE, 
LTD., a foreign corporation; 
 

Defendants. 
 

 
NO.  
 
COMPLAINT 

 
JURY DEMAND 
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Plaintiff MARK MOSS, an individual (“Plaintiff”), by and through 

undersigned counsel, hereby sues GIGA WATT, INC., a Washington corporation; 

and GIGA WATT, PTE, LTD., a foreign corporation (collectively “GIGA 

WATT” or “Defendants”), for damages and for equitable relief. In support 

thereof, Plaintiff alleges as follows: 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

1. This action is brought by Plaintiff, an investor who contributed more 

than half-a-million dollars’ worth of cryptocurrency (bitcoin, Ether, and Litecoin) 

and fiat currency during an Initial Coin Offering (ICO) in or about June 2017 − 

August 2017 propagated by Defendants − a contribution that, due to the rising 

value of the cryptocurrency that Plaintiff invested, is now valued at nearly 

$1,500,000.00. 

2. Defendants spent months promoting interest in their purported 

development of a full-service, turnkey processing center to house high-capacity 

cryptocurrency mining equipment in the state of Washington that would provide 

miners a “full range of mining services from hosting, maintenance, and repair to 

private blockchain servicing” (the “Giga Watt Project”). The state of Washington 

was chosen as the site of the Giga Watt Project because, inter alia, it has one of 

the lowest electricity costs to consumers in the world. 
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3. Defendants also promoted to investors that, hand-in-hand with 

hosting and maintaining mining equipment, Defendants would provide interested 

investors − for a separate investment of cryptocurrency − “purchase and delivery 

of mining equipment [and related power supplies] through [GIGA WATT, PTE 

LTD.] with its subsequent setup and hosting at Giga Watt’s facilities in 

Wenatchee, WA.” 

4. At the time Plaintiff made his investment, the Giga Watt Project was 

not fully developed or functional. 

5. For each investment of cryptocurrency or fiat currency in GIGA 

WATT prior to the launch of the Giga Watt Project, the investor would be given 

either: (a) Ethereum-based cryptocurrency tokens called Giga Watt tokens 

(“WTT”) which were newly-created by Defendants and which represented the 

exclusive right to use the Giga Watt Project’s capacity rent-free for 50 years, or 

(b) mining equipment and related power supplies to be set up and deployed by the 

GIGA WATT team at the site of the Giga Watt Project.  

6. The investor would not be given his/her/its Giga Watt tokens or 

machinery, however, until Defendants released a specific batch of the tokens or 

machinery, based on how far along the Giga Watt Project was in its development 

and functionality. Giga Watt tokens were not scheduled to be released by 

Defendants to the investors any earlier than July 15, 2017, though the more likely 
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initial release date was August 7, 2017 − about a week after the ICO had 

concluded. As such, each investor in the ICO was given nothing more for 

his/her/its investment than the future right to receive, on some anticipated date, a 

number of Giga Watt tokens or machinery commensurate with the investor’s 

investment that would then allow the investor access to the yet-to-be-developed 

Giga Watt Project. 

7. At the time of the ICO, the WTT were valued at approximately $1.00 

- $1.20 per WTT, though Defendants purported that value would skyrocket once 

the Giga Watt Project was fully developed and functional. 

8. To induce interest and investments in the Giga Watt Project, and to 

maintain interest amongst concerned investors after development of the Giga 

Watt Project had languished beyond acceptable timeframes, several GIGA 

WATT representatives have overtly and unmistakably stated to investors that 

between the time of the ICO and the date on which each investor would be issued 

his/her/its Giga Watt tokens, the value/price of each Giga Watt token was 

anticipated to increase significantly. Moreover, GIGA WATT represented that the 

appreciation in value of the Giga Watt tokens would not be the only income-

producing avenue open to GIGA WATT investors as a by-product of their 

investments, to wit: 
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(a) GIGA WATT Chief Executive Officer recently 
published and disseminated to GIGA WATT 
investors a newsletter in which GIGA WATT 
touted several “of the new income opportunities 
Giga Watt will bring to its WTT holders in 2018”; 
and 

(b) GIGA WATT’s in-house General Counsel (at the 
time) Zeev Kirsh, on GIGA WATT’s behalf, 
represented that by the time GIGA WATT 
completes its entire build-out, the “anticipated 
value/price of the tokens will likely climb quite a 
bit.”   

9. Giga Watt tokens allegedly derive their value from the usefulness, 

availability, functionality, and popularity of the Giga Watt Project − development 

and launch of which was and is entirely in Defendants’ control. 

10. Moreover, Defendants held within their sole control the ability to 

determine when the Giga Watt Project was far enough along in its development 

for Giga Watt tokens and machinery to be issued to investors. Investors were, and 

still are, at Defendants’ mercy with regard to when, if ever, the investors would 

be issued their Giga Watt tokens and machinery. 

11. As of the date of this filing, the Giga Watt Project is purportedly still 

being developed and, upon information and belief, might never be fully launched. 

12. Many investors have not been issued their Giga Watt tokens or had 

their machines set up and deployed, fear that they might never be issued their 

tokens or see their mining machines activated, and are losing valuable time and 
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money as Defendants indefinitely delay the further development of the Giga Watt 

Project. 

13. Additionally, Defendants have represented that virtually all of the 

cryptocurrency raised from investors in the ICO has been converted to cash, 

released from escrow, and was put into a GIGA WATT operating account − 

which Plaintiff reasonably believes means that the funds raised have been 

dissipated, or will be dissipated, before the investors receive their Giga Watt 

tokens/mining equipment or any opportunity to receive a return on their 

investments. 

14. The GIGA WATT investors, including Plaintiff, invested in a 

common enterprise and with an expectation that their investments would increase 

in value and produce for them a substantial return − all pivotal occurrences that 

would be derived solely from the efforts of others, namely Defendants. 

15. In short, the thing for which Plaintiff invested his valuable assets 

looks like a security, functions like a security, and fits the definition of a security. 

Securities regulators look beyond the form or label someone appends to his/her/its 

activity and instead consider the actual substance and purpose of the activity. 

16. Notwithstanding Defendants’ attempts to avoid governmental and 

private scrutiny, it is clear that Plaintiff was indeed a profit-seeking investor in a 

Case 2:18-cv-00100-SMJ    ECF No. 1    filed 03/19/18    PageID.6   Page 6 of 36



 

COMPLAINT - 7 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

security and that Defendants promoted and conducted an unregistered offering of 

securities. 

17. Defendants appear to have already pocketed for themselves large 

sums of money for their promotional efforts, and − due to the many 

misrepresentations, factual omissions, unwarranted delays, and unlawful activities 

engaged in by Defendants − it appears Plaintiff will not, and potentially cannot, 

see any meaningful return on his investments. 

18. In describing ICOs as a “fertile ground for fraud on investors,” 

United States Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Chairman Jay Clayton 

recently said: “[I]nvestors often do not appreciate that ICO insiders and 

management have access to immediate liquidity, as do larger investors, who may 

purchase tokens at favorable prices. Trading of tokens on these platforms is 

susceptible to price manipulation and other fraudulent trading practices.”1 Mr. 

Clayton went on to state: “The SEC may not yet have policy or rulemaking 

answers in these areas, but we are on the lookout for ways to fight the type of 

opacity that can create an environment conducive to misconduct.” 

                                                 
1 Jay Clayton, Governance and Transparency at the Commission and in Our 
Markets, Remarks at the PLI 49th Annual Institute on Securities Regulation - 
New York, NY (November 8, 2017), https://www.sec.gov/news/speech/speech-
clayton-2017-11-08.  
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19. Moreover, when Chairman Clayton testified in February 2018 before 

a U.S. Senate committee on the subject of cryptocurrency and ICOs, his 

expression of the SEC’s views on ICOs were even more pointed: 

Certain market professionals have attempted to 
highlight the utility or voucher-like characteristics of 
their proposed ICOs in an effort to claim that their 
proposed tokens or coins are not securities. Many of 
these assertions that the federal securities laws do not 
apply to a particular ICO appear to elevate form over 
substance. The rise of these form-based arguments is a 
disturbing trend that deprives investors of mandatory 
protections that clearly are required as a result of the 
structure of the transaction. Merely calling a token a 
“utility” token or structuring it to provide some utility 
does not prevent the token from being a security.  
Tokens and offerings that incorporate features and 
marketing efforts that emphasize the potential for 
profits based on the entrepreneurial or managerial 
efforts of others continue to contain the hallmarks of a 
security under U.S. law. It is especially troubling when 
the promoters of these offerings emphasize the 
secondary market trading potential of these tokens, i.e., 
the ability to sell them on an exchange at a profit. In 
short, prospective purchasers are being sold on the 
potential for tokens to increase in value – with the 
ability to lock in those increases by reselling the tokens 
on a secondary market – or to otherwise profit from the 
tokens based on the efforts of others. These are key 
hallmarks of a security and a securities offering.2 

                                                 
2 Jay Clayton, Chairman’s Testimony on Virtual Currencies: The Roles of the 
SEC and CFTC, Testimony before U.S. Senate Committee on Banking, Housing, 
and Urban Affairs (February 6, 2018), 
https://www.sec.gov/news/testimony/testimony-virtual-currencies-oversight-role-
us-securities-and-exchange-commission. 
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20. In a well-written March 12, 2018 article authored by a team of 

attorneys at Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati − one of the leading law firms in 

the United States advising blockchain and cryptocurrency promoters on how best 

to comply with SEC requirements − it is clear that the legal community 

understands, and has understood for some time now, what the SEC wants and 

expects from ICO issuers and the crypto community at-large3: 

There has, apparently, been significant shock and 
surprise over recent reports that the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC) has issued a large number 
of subpoenas to initial coin offering (ICO) issuers and 
to ICO gatekeepers who may have been involved in 
token transactions that potentially did not comply with 
the federal securities laws. 
 
To a large extent, this shock and surprise is shocking 
and surprising. 
 
The SEC has been as clear as it knows how to be that 
virtually all tokens (and simple agreements for future 
tokens, or SAFTs) are securities for purposes of the 
federal securities laws. 

*    *    * 

In any event, the crypto community is now on full 
notice that the SEC will focus on prior token and SAFT 
offerings that did not comply with the federal securities 
laws; and it can generally seek disgorgement and money 
penalties for such misconduct that occurred within the 
last five years. The SEC also will insist that all token 

                                                 
3 Tyler Kirk, Amy Caiazza, and Robert Rosenblum, “ICO Issuers: Fix the 
Problem Before the SEC Fixes It For You,” CoinDesk, March 12, 2018, 
https://www.coindesk.com/ico-issuers-fix-problem-sec-fixes.   
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issuers comply with applicable federal securities laws as 
they develop their platforms and token markets. 
 
The good news is that none of this means that 
cryptocurrencies and platforms cannot operate in the 
US. They can, but they need to do so in compliance 
with the federal securities laws (and other applicable 
laws and regulations). 
 
There also should no longer be confusion about what 
the SEC thinks. The SEC thinks that virtually all tokens 
are securities, and it thinks that all applicable securities 
laws, rules and regulations apply to tokens and token 
platforms. This is, after all, precisely what SEC 
Chairman Clayton and others at the SEC have been 
saying. 

*    *    * 

For token issuers that have already made offerings that 
do not comply with the federal securities laws, for token 
consultants and distributors that may have been acting 
as unregistered broker-dealers, and for trading markets 
that may have been acting as unregistered exchanges, it 
is time to address these issues. 
 
Going forward, many token issuers will undoubtedly 
find that the federal securities laws, as applied to tokens 
and token platforms, are clunky and cumbersome, and 
not well-tailored to their activities. Registration 
statement forms were not developed with tokens and the 
blockchain in mind, periodic reporting requirements 
were not developed with ICO issuers and platforms as 
the reporting parties in mind, the securities trading rules 
were not developed with token platforms in mind, and 
the regulations governing securities exchanges and 
markets were not developed with cryptocurrency in 
mind. 
 
Nonetheless, the federal securities laws still apply. 
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21. In addition to the SEC’s mandates in this area, the Financial Crimes 

Enforcement Network (FinCEN) − a division of the United States Treasury 

Department − has recently declared that any developer that sells convertible 

virtual currency, including in the form of ICO coins or tokens, in exchange for 

another type of value that substitutes for currency is a “money transmitter” 

subject to proper registration with the Treasury Department, anti-money 

laundering rules, and other regulatory and licensing requirements. Upon 

information and belief, GIGA WATT has not satisfied its requirements as a 

“money transmitter.” 

22. Proof of Defendants’ deceptive activity and intentional deprivation 

of investors’ rights and protections under the federal securities laws is not 

required or determinative as to Plaintiff’s claims. That is because Defendants are 

strictly liable for offering and selling unregistered securities. Nevertheless, 

Defendants’ deceptive advertisements, blogs, and investor updates are outlined 

below to stress the urgency and need for immediate judicial intervention to 

preserve Plaintiff’s significant financial interests which Defendants currently 

control, and to rectify existing and future irreparable harm to Plaintiff and other 

investors. 
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23. Plaintiff seeks compensatory and equitable relief rescinding his 

investments in GIGA WATT and restoring to him the assets and funds he was 

induced into investing. 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

THE PARTIES 

Plaintiff 

24. Plaintiff is an individual domiciled in San Clemente, California and 

is sui juris. Between June 2, 2017 and August 21, 2017, Plaintiff transmitted to 

Defendants 9.785386 bitcoin, 322.605305 Ether, 4,056.28 Litecoin, and 

$241,890.00 (USD) in fiat currency as his investments in GIGA WATT, broken 

down thusly: (a) 3.513386 bitcoin and 322.605305 ether invested for the 

disbursement of 60,282 WTT tokens, and (b) 6.272 bitcoin, 4,056.28 Litecoin, 

and $241,890.00 (USD) for 129 Antminer D3 machines, 60 L3+ machines, 

related power supplies, and deployment/setup fees. Plaintiff’s bitcoin, Ether, 

Litecoin, and fiat currency (now being held, in one form or another, by 

Defendants) are currently worth nearly $1,500,000.00. 

25. Plaintiff presented to Defendants several written demands that 

Plaintiff’s investments in GIGA WATT be addressed and/or rescinded by GIGA 

WATT − a demand that Plaintiff repeated on numerous occasions, including a 

March 1, 2018 demand written on Plaintiff’s behalf by undersigned counsel. 
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26. As of the date of this filing, Defendants have failed to provide a 

meaningful response to Plaintiff’s demand and instead seem intent on merely 

stalling for time despite having violated the terms of their own White Paper and 

having refused to adhere to their own terms for an investor remedy. 

Defendants 

27. Defendant GIGA WATT, INC. is a Washington corporation with its 

principal place of business in Wenatchee, Washington. Upon information and 

belief, GIGA WATT, INC. is currently controlled by its founder, Dave Carlson. 

28. Defendant GIGA WATT PTE, LTD. is a foreign for-profit 

corporation which lists its principal place of business in Singapore. GIGA WATT 

PTE, LTD. sold to investors mining equipment and related power supplies that 

could be installed and hosted at the Giga Watt Project’s business site(s) in 

Washington. Upon information and belief, GIGA WATT PTE, LTD. is currently 

controlled by Dave Carlson. 

29. Upon information and belief, GIGA WATT, INC. and GIGA WATT 

PTE, LTD. are alter egos of one another and are operated by Dave Carlson, who 

continues to operate the businesses through the present day while ignoring all 

corporate formalities and using the two companies interchangeably as mere 

instrumentalities for his personal interests in an attempt to shield himself from 

personal liability for his wrongful conduct. 

Case 2:18-cv-00100-SMJ    ECF No. 1    filed 03/19/18    PageID.13   Page 13 of 36



 

COMPLAINT - 14 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

Other Liable Persons/Entities 

30. In addition to those persons and entities set forth as Defendants 

herein, there are likely other parties who may well be liable to Plaintiff, but 

respecting whom Plaintiff currently lacks specific facts to permit it to name such 

person or persons as a party defendant. By not naming such persons or entities at 

this time, Plaintiff is not waiving its right to amend this pleading to add such 

parties, should the facts warrant adding such parties. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

Subject Matter Jurisdiction 

31. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 

28 U.S.C. § 1332 because the amount in controversy exceeds Seventy-Five 

Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00), exclusive of interest, costs and attorneys’ fees, 

and is an action between citizens of different states. 

32. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction over the Washington state 

law claims under 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a) because these claims are so related to this 

action that they form part of the same case or controversy. 

Personal Jurisdiction 

33. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants because: (a) at 

least one Defendant is operating, present, and/or doing business within this 
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District, and (b) Defendants’ breaches and unlawful activity occurred within this 

District. 

34. Defendants solicited investors in this jurisdiction, including Plaintiff, 

to participate in the Giga Watt Project − reaping from those investors large sums 

of money and other assets, including valuable cryptocurrency. 

35. In light of the foregoing, Defendants purposefully availed 

themselves of the benefits of operating in this jurisdiction; and this Court may 

exercise personal jurisdiction over Defendants. 

Venue 

36. Venue is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391 in that a substantial 

part of the events or omissions giving rise to the claims set forth herein occurred 

in this judicial district, as GIGA WATT, INC. resides in Washington and the 

Giga Watt Project has its mining facilities located in Washington. 

37. In light of the foregoing, this District is a proper venue in which to 

adjudicate this dispute.  

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL COUNTS 
 

Cryptocurrency Coin Mining 

38. Unlike fiat currency such as U.S. dollars or Euros − which are 

printed by governmental entities − cryptocurrency comes into existence in the 
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decentralized, self-regulated world of cryptocurrency through the dogged work of 

individuals or entities known as miners. 

39. Bitcoin mining is the process by which transactions are verified and 

added to the public ledger, known as the blockchain, and also is the means 

through which new bitcoin are released. 

40. While anyone with access to the internet and suitable hardware can 

participate in mining, the work is difficult and the hardware − along with the 

electricity required to operate that hardware − is oftentimes expensive. 

41. The mining process involves compiling recent transactions into 

blocks and trying to solve a computationally difficult algorithmic puzzle. This 

work typically requires several computers working together to be running 24 

hours a day. 

42. The miner who first solves the puzzle gets to place the next block on 

the blockchain and claim the rewards for his/her/its efforts. 

43. The rewards, which incentivize mining, are both the transactional 

fees associated with the transactions compiled in the block as well as the newly-

released bitcoin, of which there is only a finite number that can ever exist in the 

world. 
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44. Mining cryptocurrency today holds much of the same allure that 

drew gold prospectors to California in the late-1840s. If the mining is successful, 

great wealth can be amassed in a short amount of time. 

The Giga Watt White Paper 

45. In or about May 2017, GIGA WATT published its White Paper, 

setting forth the terms of its scheduled ICO and what participants should expect 

for investing in the Giga Watt Project. 

46. According to the GIGA WATT White Paper, the following is the 

substance of the Giga Watt Project: 

The Giga Watt Project is built in partnership between 
Giga Watt, Inc. a U.S. company (“Giga Watt” or 
“Company”), which offers mining hosting services at its 
Wenatchee, WA facilities, and GigaWatt Pte. Ltd., a 
Singapore company (“Partner”), which sells mining 
equipment to customers worldwide. 

*    *    * 
Giga Watt’s standard turnkey solution includes purchase 
and delivery of mining equipment through its Partner 
with its subsequent setup and hosting at Giga Watt’s 
facilities in Wenatchee, WA, with hosting fees starting as 
low as 7.5 USD cents/kW/hour, zero setup fees (for 
equipment purchased through its Partner) and uniquely 
low minimum facility entrance threshold of 1 miner of 
any model. 
 

47. Under the section labeled “Payment Terms,” the White Paper 

provides the following, in pertinent part: 
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All funds collected through the pre-sale and [the ICO] 
will be deposited in escrow. Original payments made in 
BTC and ETH will be converted to USD at the rate effective 
at the time when the rights to WTT tokens were reserved. 
 
The funds will be released from escrow in step with the 
completion of facilities. 
 

48. According to a statement subsequently published by Andrey 

Kuzenny (GIGA WATT’s Chief Coordinator) on one of GIGA WATT’s online 

support channels, all of the funds converted to USD were originally placed into 

an escrow account maintained by the Seattle, Washington-based international law 

firm Perkins Coie. 

49. As for what the mining facilities (“pods”) would look like, the 

projected timeline of the development of the Giga Watt Project, and when each 

investor should expect to receive his/her/its Giga Watt tokens and mining 

equipment, the White Paper provided the following projected images: 
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and further set forth the following timeline: 

Projected Construction Timeline 
3 units, 2.25 MW are available right now 
 
[Batch 1] 
- July 15, 2017: 1 Giga Pod completed, 0.75 MW 
 
[Batch 2] 
- August 1, 2017: 2 Giga Pods completed, 2.4MW 

 
  - August 15, 2017: Expansion of the unit, 0.9 MW 

 
[Batch 3] 
- September 1, 2017: 3 Giga Pods completed, 4.5 MW 
 
[Batch 4] 
- September 15, 2017: 9 Giga Pods completed, 15 MW 
 
[Batch 5] 
- October 1, 2017: 3 Giga Pods completed, 4.5 MW 
 
[Batch 6] 
- November 15, 2017: 3 Giga Pods completed, 4.2 MW 
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Plaintiff, for example, found himself in Batches 3 and 4, based upon when he 

made his investments. 

50. With regard to the risks involved in the ICO, GIGA WATT’s White 

Paper states: 

Construction timeline specified in this White Paper is 
based on the reasonable estimates but is not guaranteed. 
This timeline may change, and the construction may be 
delayed because of many factors, including those beyond 
Giga Watt’s control, such as the actions of third parties 
(contractors, suppliers, etc.). If the completion of the 
capacities is delayed by more than 3 months from the 
projected date, and, consequently, the relevant WTT 
tokens are not issued, the escrow agent may issue a 
refund at the request of the WTT token purchasers. 
The refund will be issued in the original form of 
payment at the exchange rate on the date of the 
refund. 

(emphasis added). 

51. Finally, lest it be unclear that the GIGA WATT management team 

and its business partners were seeking to obtain as much compensation for their 

promotional efforts as they could manufacture, the White Paper reveals that the 

GIGA WATT insiders would distribute to themselves additional tokens for every 

100 WTT sold during either the ICO pre-sale or the ICO itself: 

For every 100 tokens sold, 15 additional tokens will be 
issued and retained for the team, partners and advisors: 
10 tokens to be distributed to team members, and 5 to be 
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retained for distribution to partners and advisors at 
[GIGA WATT’s] discretion.4 
 

52. The subtle inclusion of the self-determined bonuses for GIGA 

WATT insiders is common in the emerging, and largely unchecked, self-serving 

world of ICO fundraising. 

53. As noted above, SEC Chairman Jay Clayton warns that fundraising 

efforts in exchange for tokens issued for start-up or open-source projects are ripe 

for misconduct − especially because “insiders and management have access to 

immediate liquidity, as do larger investors.” 

54. The one-sided terms imposed upon Plaintiff and other investors in 

the GIGA WATT ICO White Paper are both unconscionable and illusory. The 

GIGA WATT White Paper purports to require agreement from the investors that, 

despite the investors’ investments, GIGA WATT might not allocate to the 

investors any WTT or mining equipment at all; and even after a three-month 

delay has occurred, GIGA WATT still might not rescind or refund any investor’s 

cryptocurrency investment − all while retaining the investors’ invested funds and 

assets and while having released to themselves (i.e., the GIGA WATT insiders) 

                                                 
4 Emphasis added, reflecting that the event triggering the GIGA WATT 
management team’s entitlement to, and receipt of, additional tokens was the sale 
of tokens, not the post-ICO issuance of those tokens or the post-ICO distribution 
of Giga Watt tokens to the investors. 
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additional WTT tokens merely for having procured the sale of undelivered 

investor tokens and machinery.  

55. Moreover, GIGA WATT retained in its sole discretion the ability to 

determine when, if ever, an investor token release would occur or an investor’s 

mining equipment would be set up and deployed − decisions to which investors 

were rendered helpless and over which they had no influence. 

56. The onerous manner in which GIGA WATT imposed upon investors 

its terms render the terms unfair, unconscionable, oppressive, and a contract of 

adhesion. 

Pre-Network Launch Tokens Are Securities 

57. Additionally, by their very nature, tokens sold before a network 

launch are securities, because investors purchasing those tokens are relying on the 

technical and managerial efforts of others to affect the failure or success of the 

enterprise. 

58. While pre-network launch tokens may someday have a consumptive 

use, the fact that they have no pre-launch utility renders them almost entirely 

dependent upon the efforts of the issuer to successfully develop and launch a 

functional network. 

59. Here, Plaintiff and other Giga Watt investors were (and still are) 

entirely dependent upon Defendants to launch the Giga Watt Project and provide 
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some valuable use to the Giga Watt tokens for which Plaintiff any other investors 

have already provided their investment funds. 

No Safe Harbor 

60. The statutory safe-harbor provided for forward-looking statements 

under certain circumstances does not apply to any of the allegedly false 

statements pleaded in this Complaint. 

61. Many of the specific statements pleaded herein were not identified as 

“forward-looking statements” when made. 

62. To the extent there were any forward-looking statements, there were 

no meaningful cautionary statements identifying important factors that could 

cause actual results to differ materially from those in the purportedly forward-

looking statements. 

63. Alternatively, to the extent the statutory safe-harbor does apply to 

any forward-looking statements pleaded herein, Defendants are liable for those 

false forward-looking statements because at the time each of those forward-

looking statements were made, the particular speaker knew that the particular 

forward-looking statement was false or that the forward-looking statement was 

authorized or approved by an executive officer of the defendant entities, who 

knew those statements were false when made. 
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Plaintiff’s Investments in Giga Watt 

64. Between June 2, 2017 and July 26, 2017, Plaintiff transmitted to 

Defendants 3.513386 bitcoin and 322.605305 Ether as his investment in 60,282 

Giga Watt tokens to be issued by Defendants in or about September 2017. A large 

percentage of Plaintiff’s purchase was transacted between July 17, 2017 and   

July 26, 2017. 

65. In addition, between June 12, 2017 and August 21, 2017, Plaintiff 

transmitted to Defendants 6.272 bitcoin, 4,056.28 Litecoin, and $241,890.00 

(USD) as his investment in 129 Antminer D3 machines, 60 L3+ machines, related 

power supplies, and deployment so those machines could be installed and hosted 

at the Giga Watt Project’s business location(s) in Washington. 

66. The total sum of Plaintiff’s 9.785386 bitcoin, 322.605305 Ether, 

4,056.28 Litecoin, and fiat currency invested (now being held, in one form or 

another, by Defendants) is currently worth nearly $1,500,000.00. 

67. To make his investments, Plaintiff placed his purchases through the 

Cryptonomous platform − a Singapore-based online platform through which all 

payments for WTT tokens were collected and through which all WTT tokens 

were to be issued and distributed by Defendants to GIGA WATT investors − 

from Plaintiff’s home in California and followed the instructions provided. 
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68. Upon information and belief, Cryptonomous and Defendants share a 

common ownership interest. GIGA WATT PTE, LTD. and Cryptonomous each 

have their official registered place of business at the same exact office suite in 

Singapore. Additionally, Andrey Kuzenny − who is GIGA WATT’s Chief 

Coordinator − is also a Co-Founder of Cryptonomous and, upon information and 

belief, continues to act as a principal of each of the corporate entities today. 

69. Although Plaintiff was supposed to receive his Batches 3 and 4 WTT 

by September 2017 and was supposed to have his 129 Antminer D3 and 60 L3+ 

machines up-and-running at the Giga Watt Project in the same general timeframe 

if not soon thereafter, no such issuance took place by those dates. 

70. On or about December 14, 2017, Defendants published on their 

Medium page an “Announcement Regarding Batch 4 Tokens,”5 which stated, in 

pertinent part: 

                                                 
5https://medium.com/@gigawatt/announcement-regarding-batch-4-tokens-
f669748f08b8. 
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(emphasis added). 

71. Plaintiff has presented to Defendants numerous written demands that 

Plaintiff’s investments in GIGA WATT be properly addressed and/or rescinded 

by GIGA WATT − including several demands after a 90-day delay without 

Plaintiff’s paid-for WTT being issued to Plaintiff or Plaintiff’s paid-for mining 

equipment and related power supplies being timely set up and deployed at the 

Giga Watt Project.  

72. Despite Plaintiff’s repeated demand for a refund of his 

cryptocurrency, Defendants have failed and refused to rescind Plaintiff’s 

investments and refund to Plaintiff the cryptocurrency Plaintiff delivered to 

Defendants. 
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73. As a result of the foregoing, Plaintiff has been damaged in an 

amount that will be proven at trial. 

74. Plaintiff has duly performed all of his duties and obligations, and any 

conditions precedent to Plaintiff bringing this action have occurred, have been 

performed, or else have been excused or waived. 

75. To enforce his rights, Plaintiff has retained undersigned counsel and 

is obligated to pay counsel a reasonable fee for its services, for which Defendants 

are liable as a result of their bad faith and otherwise. 

COUNT I 
Unregistered Offer and Sale of Securities 

In Violation of Section 12(a)(1) of the Securities Act 

Plaintiff re-alleges, and adopts by reference herein, Paragraphs 1 - 75 above, 

and further alleges: 

76. Section 12(a)(1) of the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”) 

[15 U.S.C. §§ 77l(a)(1)] grants Plaintiff a private right of action against any 

person who offers or sells a security in violation of Section 5 of the Securities Act 

[15 U.S.C. §§ 77e], and states that such person: 

shall be liable . . . to the person purchasing such security 
from him, who may sue either at law or in equity in any 
court of competent jurisdiction, to recover the 
consideration for such security with interest thereon, less 
the amount of any income received thereon, upon the 
tender of such security, or for damages if he no longer 
owns the security. 
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77. Defendants, by engaging in the conduct described above, directly or 

indirectly made use of means or instruments of transportation or communication 

in interstate commerce or of the mails to offer to sell or to actually sell securities, 

or to carry or cause such securities to be carried through the mails or in interstate 

commerce for the purpose of sale or for delivery after sale. 

78. Defendants are “sellers” within the meaning of the Securities Act 

because they or their agents solicited Plaintiff’s investments in the GIGA WATT 

ICO. 

79. The terms of the GIGA WATT ICO called for an investment of 

cryptocurrency or fiat currency by Plaintiff. 

80. The funds paid by Plaintiff pursuant to the GIGA WATT ICO were 

pooled by Defendants with funds from other investors in an effort by Defendants 

to secure a profit for themselves and the investors. As a result, the investors, 

including Plaintiff, shared in the risks and benefits of the investment. 

81. Plaintiff relied on, and is dependent upon, the expertise and efforts of 

Defendants for his investment returns. 

82. Plaintiff expected that he would receive profits from his investments 

in Defendants’ efforts. 
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83. Giga Watt tokens constitute investment contracts and are therefore 

subject to federal securities laws, including the registration requirements 

promulgated thereunder. 

84. No registration statements have been filed with the SEC or have 

been in effect with respect to any of the offerings alleged herein. 

85. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants have participated in the offer 

and sale of unregistered securities in violation of the Securities Act. 

86. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ unregistered sale of 

securities, Plaintiff has suffered damages in connection with his respective 

purchases of Giga Watt token securities in the GIGA WATT ICO. 

COUNT II 
Unregistered Offer and Sale of Securities 

In Violation of the Washington Securities Act (RCW 21.20) 
 

Plaintiff re-alleges, and adopts by reference herein, Paragraphs 1 – 86 above, 

and further alleges: 

87. Section RCW 21.20.430 of the Washington State Securities Act (the 

“WSSA”) [RCW 21.20] grants Plaintiff a private right of action against any 

person who offers or sells a security in violation of Section 21.20.140(1) or (2) of 

the WSSA, and states that such person: 

is liable to the person buying the security from him or her, 
who may sue either at law or in equity to recover the 
consideration paid for the security, together with interest at 
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eight percent per annum from the date of payment, costs, 
and reasonable attorneys’ fees, less the amount of any 
income received on the security, upon the tender of the 
security, or for damages if he or she no longer owns the 
security. 

88. Defendants, by engaging in the conduct described above, made 

an “offer” or “offer to sell” within the meaning of the WSSA because they 

or their agents solicited Plaintiff’s investments in the GIGA WATT ICO. 

89. Defendants, by engaging in the conduct described above, made 

a “sale” within the meaning of the WSSA because they or their agents 

disposed of a security for value. 

90. The terms of the GIGA WATT ICO called for an investment of 

cryptocurrency or fiat currency by Plaintiff. 

91. The funds paid by Plaintiff pursuant to the GIGA WATT ICO 

were pooled by Defendants with funds from other investors in an effort by 

Defendants to secure a profit for themselves and the investors. As a result, 

the investors, including Plaintiff, shared in the risks and benefits of the 

investment. 

92. Plaintiff relied on, and is dependent upon, the expertise and 

efforts of Defendants for his investment returns. 

93. Plaintiff expected that he would receive profits from his 

investments in Defendants’ efforts.  
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94. No registration statements have been filed with the SEC or the 

state of Washington, or have been in effect with respect to any of the 

offerings alleged herein. 

95. The offerings alleged herein were not exempt from registration 

with the state of Washington. 

96. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants have participated in the 

offer and sale of unregistered securities in violation of the WSSA. 

97. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ unregistered 

sale of securities, Plaintiff has suffered damages in connection with his 

respective purchases of Giga Watt token securities in the GIGA WATT ICO. 

COUNT III 
Rescission of Contract 

Plaintiff re-alleges, and adopts by reference herein, Paragraphs 1 - 97 above, 

and further alleges: 

98. The terms of the GIGA WATT ICO constitute a contract between 

Plaintiff and Defendants. 

99. The contract was entered into by and between Plaintiff and 

Defendants between June 1, 2017 and August 7, 2017. 

100. The terms of the GIGA WATT ICO called for an investment of 

cryptocurrency and fiat currency by Plaintiff. 
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101. The funds paid by Plaintiff pursuant to the GIGA WATT ICO were 

pooled by Defendants with funds of other investors in an effort by Defendants to 

secure a profit for themselves and the investors. As a result, the investors, 

including Plaintiff, shared in the risks and benefits of the investment. 

102. Plaintiff relied on, and is dependent upon, the expertise and efforts of 

Defendants for his investment returns. 

103. The terms of the GIGA WATT ICO constitute an investment 

contract and is therefore subject to federal and state securities laws, including the 

registration requirements promulgated thereunder. 

104. No registration statement was filed or in effect with any federal or 

state regulatory body, and no exemption from registration exists with respect to 

the GIGA WATT ICO. 

105. Moreover, contrary to the terms of the GIGA WATT White Paper − 

which stated that all invested cryptocurrency would be held in escrow and would 

only “be released from escrow in step with the completion of facilities” −  

Defendants have represented to Plaintiff that, without regard to GIGA WATT’s 

failure to have completed its facilities, virtually all of the cryptocurrency raised 

from investors in the ICO has been liquidated into U.S. Dollars and has been 

transferred from the escrow account to an operating account; and Plaintiff 

reasonably believes the funds raised have been dissipated, or will be dissipated, 
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before all ICO investors receive their Giga Watt tokens/mining equipment or any 

opportunity to receive a return on their investments. 

106. As a result of Defendants’ false representations and violation of 

federal securities laws in connection with the GIGA WATT ICO, Plaintiff states 

his demand that the contract between him and Defendants be rescinded and 

canceled. 

107. To the extent Plaintiff has received from Defendants any benefits 

through the contract, Plaintiff hereby offers to restore to Defendants those 

benefits, once they are identified and can be quantified. 

108. As a direct and proximate cause of Defendants’ conduct, Plaintiff 

has been damaged. 

109. Defendant GIGA WATT, INC. is subject to liability because it 

solicited and otherwise participated in the sale to Plaintiff of the unregistered 

securities identified herein. Moreover, Defendant GIGA WATT, INC. is subject 

to liability because it is believed to control, or have obtained control over, a large 

portion of the assets invested by Plaintiff which must be disgorged and returned 

to Plaintiff in effectuating the rescission of the contract into which he was 

unlawfully led. 

110. Defendant GIGA WATT, PTE, LTD. is subject to liability 

because it solicited and otherwise participated in the sale to Plaintiff of the 
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unregistered securities identified herein. Moreover, Defendant GIGA WATT, 

PTE, LTD. is subject to liability because it is believed to control, or have obtained 

control over, a large portion of the assets invested by Plaintiff which must be 

disgorged and returned to Plaintiff in effectuating the rescission of the contract 

into which he was unlawfully led. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff MARK MOSS, an individual, respectfully prays 

for relief as follows: 

A. An Order enjoining Defendants from making further transfers or 

dissipations of the investment funds and assets raised in connection with the 

promoted GIGA WATT ICO, or using such funds and assets in any further 

purchases or transactions; 

B. A judgment awarding Plaintiff equitable restitution, including, 

without limitation, rescission of his investments in GIGA WATT, restoration of 

the status quo ante, and return to Plaintiff all cryptocurrency or fiat currency paid 

to Defendants in connection with the purported ICO as a result of Defendants’ 

unlawful and unfair business practices and conduct; 

C. An award of any and all additional damages recoverable under law − 

jointly and severally entered against Defendants − including but not limited to 
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compensatory damages, punitive damages, incidental damages, and consequential 

damages; 

D. An Order requiring an accounting of the remaining funds and assets 

raised from Plaintiff in connection with the GIGA WATT ICO; 

E. An Order imposing a constructive trust over the funds and assets 

rightfully belonging to Plaintiff; 

F. Pre- and post-judgment interest; 

G. Attorneys’ fees, expenses, and the costs of this action; and 

H. All other and further relief as this Court deems necessary, just, and 

proper. 

PLAINTIFF’S DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Pursuant to Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff 

demands trial by jury in this action of all issues so triable. 
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RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED AND DATED this 19th day of March, 

2018. 

TERRELL MARSHALL LAW GROUP PLLC 
 
By:     /s/ Beth E. Terrell, WSBA #26759  

Beth E. Terrell, WSBA #26759 
 

By:  /s/ Blythe H. Chandler, WSBA #43387 
Blythe H. Chandler, WSBA #43387 

 
By: /s/ Brittany J. Glass, WSBA #52095 

Brittany J. Glass, WSBA #52095 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff  
936 North 34th Street, Suite 300 
Seattle, Washington 98103 
Telephone: (206) 816-6603 
Facsimile: (206) 319-5450 
Email:  bterrell@terrellmarshall.com 
Email:  bchandler@terrellmarshall.com 
 
David C. Silver, pro hac vice motion 
   forthcoming 
Jason S. Miller, pro hac vice motion  
   forthcoming 
Attorneys for Plaintiff  
SILVER MILLER 
11780 West Sample Road 
Coral Springs, Florida 33065 
Telephone: (954) 516-6000 
Email: dsilver@silvermillerlaw.com 
Email: jmiller@silvermillerlaw.com 
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12)  Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

__________ District of __________ 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Plaintiff(s)

v. Civil Action No.

Defendant(s)

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.  The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date

     Eastern District of Washington

MARK MOSS, an individual,

GIGA WATT, INC., a Washington corporation; and
GIGA WATT, PTE, LTD., a foreign corporation,

GIGA WATT, INC.
c/o Washington Registered Agent, LLC
170 South Lincoln Street #100
Spokane, Washington 99201

Beth E. Terrell, WSBA #26759
Terrell Marshall Law Group PLLC
936 North 34th Street, Suite 300, Seattle, Washington 98103
(206) 816-6603; bterrell@terrellmarshall.com

SEAN F. McAVOY, Clerk
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Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date) .

I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

 designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or

I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or

Other (specify):

.

My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ .

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:

0.00
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

__________ District of __________ 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Plaintiff(s)

v. Civil Action No.

Defendant(s)

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.  The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date

     Eastern District of Washington

MARK MOSS, an individual,

GIGA WATT, INC., a Washington corporation; and
GIGA WATT, PTE, LTD., a foreign corporation,

GIGA WATT, PTE, LTD.,
1 Coleman Street
#08-07
The Adelphi
Singapore 179803

Beth E. Terrell, WSBA #26759
Terrell Marshall Law Group PLLC
936 North 34th Street, Suite 300, Seattle, Washington 98103
(206) 816-6603; bterrell@terrellmarshall.com

SEAN F. McAVOY, Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12)  Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date) .

I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

 designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or

I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or

Other (specify):

.

My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ .

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:

0.00
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The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law,  except as
provided by local rules of court.  This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the
purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS DEFENDANTS

(b)   County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff County of Residence of First Listed Defendant
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES) (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF 
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.

(c)   Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number)  Attorneys (If Known)

II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an “X” in One Box Only) III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an “X” in One Box for Plaintiff
(For Diversity Cases Only) and One Box for Defendant) 

1   U.S. Government 3  Federal Question PTF    DEF PTF    DEF
Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a Party) Citizen of This State 1  1 Incorporated or Principal Place 4 4

    of Business In This State

2   U.S. Government 4  Diversity Citizen of Another State 2  2 Incorporated and Principal Place 5 5
Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III) of Business In Another State

Citizen or Subject of a 3  3 Foreign Nation 6 6
    Foreign Country

IV. NATURE OF SUIT (Place an “X” in One Box Only) Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.
CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES

110 Insurance  PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY 625 Drug Related Seizure 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 375 False Claims Act
120 Marine 310 Airplane 365 Personal Injury  -   of Property 21 USC 881 423 Withdrawal 376 Qui Tam (31 USC 
130 Miller Act 315 Airplane Product   Product Liability 690 Other   28 USC 157   3729(a))
140 Negotiable Instrument   Liability 367 Health Care/ 400 State Reapportionment
150 Recovery of Overpayment 320 Assault, Libel &  Pharmaceutical PROPERTY RIGHTS 410 Antitrust

 & Enforcement of Judgment   Slander  Personal Injury 820 Copyrights 430 Banks and Banking
151 Medicare Act 330 Federal Employers’  Product Liability 830 Patent 450 Commerce
152 Recovery of Defaulted   Liability 368 Asbestos Personal 835 Patent - Abbreviated 460 Deportation

 Student Loans 340 Marine   Injury Product        New Drug Application 470 Racketeer Influenced and
 (Excludes Veterans) 345 Marine Product   Liability 840 Trademark  Corrupt Organizations

153 Recovery of Overpayment   Liability  PERSONAL PROPERTY LABOR SOCIAL SECURITY 480 Consumer Credit
 of Veteran’s Benefits 350 Motor Vehicle 370 Other Fraud 710 Fair Labor Standards 861 HIA (1395ff) 490 Cable/Sat TV

160 Stockholders’ Suits 355 Motor Vehicle 371 Truth in Lending   Act 862 Black Lung (923) 850 Securities/Commodities/
190 Other Contract  Product Liability 380 Other Personal 720 Labor/Management 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g))   Exchange
195 Contract Product Liability 360 Other Personal  Property Damage   Relations 864 SSID Title XVI 890 Other Statutory Actions
196 Franchise  Injury 385 Property Damage 740 Railway Labor Act 865 RSI (405(g)) 891 Agricultural Acts

362 Personal Injury -  Product Liability 751 Family and Medical 893 Environmental Matters
 Medical Malpractice   Leave Act 895 Freedom of Information

 REAL PROPERTY    CIVIL RIGHTS   PRISONER PETITIONS 790 Other Labor Litigation FEDERAL TAX SUITS   Act
210 Land Condemnation 440 Other Civil Rights Habeas Corpus: 791 Employee Retirement 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff 896 Arbitration
220 Foreclosure 441 Voting 463 Alien Detainee  Income Security Act   or Defendant) 899 Administrative Procedure
230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 442 Employment 510 Motions to Vacate 871 IRS—Third Party  Act/Review or Appeal of
240 Torts to Land 443 Housing/  Sentence   26 USC 7609  Agency Decision
245 Tort Product Liability  Accommodations 530 General 950 Constitutionality of
290 All Other Real Property 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - 535 Death Penalty IMMIGRATION  State Statutes

 Employment Other: 462 Naturalization Application
446 Amer. w/Disabilities - 540 Mandamus & Other 465 Other Immigration

 Other 550 Civil Rights        Actions
448 Education 555 Prison Condition

560 Civil Detainee -
 Conditions of 
 Confinement

V.  ORIGIN (Place an “X” in One Box Only)
1 Original

Proceeding
2 Removed from

State Court
 3 Remanded from

Appellate Court
4 Reinstated or

Reopened
 5 Transferred from

Another District
(specify)

 6 Multidistrict
Litigation -
Transfer

8  Multidistrict
    Litigation -
   Direct File

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION
Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):

Brief description of cause:

VII. REQUESTED IN
COMPLAINT:

CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION
UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P.

DEMAND $ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:
JURY DEMAND: Yes No

VIII. RELATED CASE(S)
IF ANY (See instructions):

JUDGE DOCKET NUMBER
DATE SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

RECEIPT # AMOUNT APPLYING IFP JUDGE MAG. JUDGE

Mark Moss

Orange County

Beth E. Terrell, WSBA #26759
Terrell Marshall Law Group PLLC, 936 N. 34th Street, Suite 300
Seattle, Washington 98103; 206-816-6603; bterrell@terrellmarshall.com

GIGA WATT, INC. and GIGA WATT, PTE, LTD.

Chelan County

28 U.S.C. § 1332

Securities Fraud

Beth E. Terrell, WSBA #2675903/19/2018
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44
Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as
required by law, except as provided by local rules of court.  This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is
required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet.  Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of
Court for each civil complaint filed.  The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

I.(a) Plaintiffs-Defendants.  Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant.  If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use
only the full name or standard abbreviations.  If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and 
then the official, giving both name and title.

   (b) County of Residence.  For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the 
time of filing.  In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing.  (NOTE: In land 
condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant" is the location of the tract of land involved.)

   (c) Attorneys.  Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record.  If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section "(see attachment)".

II.  Jurisdiction.  The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an "X" 
in one of the boxes.  If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
United States plaintiff.  (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348.  Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant.  (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.
Federal question.  (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment 
to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States.  In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes 
precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.
Diversity of citizenship.  (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states.  When Box 4 is checked, the 
citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity 
cases.)

III.  Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties.  This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above.  Mark this
section for each principal party.

IV. Nature of Suit.  Place an "X" in the appropriate box.  If there are multiple nature of suit codes associated with the case, pick the nature of suit code 
that is most applicable.  Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.

V. Origin.  Place an "X" in one of the seven boxes.
Original Proceedings.  (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.
Removed from State Court.  (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.
When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.
Remanded from Appellate Court.  (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action.  Use the date of remand as the filing 
date.
Reinstated or Reopened.  (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court.  Use the reopening date as the filing date.
Transferred from Another District.  (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a).  Do not use this for within district transfers or 
multidistrict litigation transfers.
Multidistrict Litigation – Transfer.  (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C. 
Section 1407. 
Multidistrict Litigation – Direct File.  (8) Check this box when a multidistrict case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket. 
PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS NOT AN ORIGIN CODE 7.  Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to 
changes in statue.

VI. Cause of Action.  Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional 
statutes unless diversity.  Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553  Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

VII. Requested in Complaint.  Class Action.  Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand.  In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.
Jury Demand.  Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

VIII. Related Cases.  This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any.  If there are related pending cases, insert the docket 
numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Date and Attorney Signature.  Date and sign the civil cover sheet.
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